REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

105 S MAIN ST
FARMER CITY, ILLINOIS
MONDAY NOVEMBER 15,2021
6:00 P.M.
AGENDA
PRELIMINARY MATTERS
1. Call to order

2. Rollcall

3. Pledge of allegiance to the flag

4. Proclamations/presentations/recognitions
5. Public Comment —

CONSENT AGENDA

The following items will be adopted on a single motion without discussion unless a council member requests
separate consideration:

A. Approval of the minutes of the October 18, 2021 council minutes

B. Fund Warrant List

UNFINISHED BUSINESS--Ordinances or resolutions previously tabled.

NEW BUSINESS--Ordinances and resolutions for initial consideration

A. Ordinance 1076 amending title VII: Traffic code, Chapter 78: Parking schedules, schedule II1.
Handicapped parking spaces and related matters (VFW).

B. Ordinance 1077 an ordinance establishing regulations governing the registration, maintenance, security
and monitoring of vacant properties by their owners.

C. Approval to waive the bidding process for the purchase of two breakers for the power plant for
approximately $60,000.

D. Resolution 2021-65 Resolution amending 2022 meeting dates as required by law.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
OTHER ITEMS

1. City manager report
2. Non-agenda items and other business

ADJOURNMENT
NOTE: Anyone planning to attend the meeting who has need of special assistance under the Americans with

Disabilities Act (ADA) is asked to contact the city clerk’s office at (309) 928-2842, 48 hours before the
meeting. Staff will be pleased to make the necessary arrangements.



MINUTES OF THE FARMER CITY, ILLINOIS
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
OCTOBER 18, 2021 6 p.m.

Roll call Present: Councilmembers Shelley Friedrich, David Walsh, Jason Strough,
Willard McKinley and Mayor Scott Testory.

Also, in attendance: City Manager Sue McLaughlin, City Clerk Angie
Wanserski, City Attorney Joe Chamley.

Pledge of allegiance to the flag
Proclamations/presentations:

Public comment:

CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approval of the minutes of the September 20, 2021 council meeting.

B. Fund Warrant List
MOTION by McKinley to approve consent agenda. Seconded by Friedrich. Voted
unanimously. Motion carried.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. Ordinance 1075 an ordinance accepting a bid in connection with the sale of certain real estate
(420 N John St).
MOTION by McKinley to approve ordinance 1075 an ordinance accepting a bid in
connection with the sale of certain real estate (420 N John St). Seconded by Friedrich. Voted
unanimously. Motion carried.

B. Approval of the quote from GameTime for the Prairie Ridge Subdivision Playground in the
amount of $243,956.00.
Council has opted to go with a poured surface for the playground. They are anticipating
putting money aside for future maintenance with the TIF extension.
MOTION by McKinley to approve the quote from GameTime for the Prairie Ridge
Subdivision Playground in the amount of $243,956.00. Seconded by Friedrich. Voted
unanimously. Motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS

A. Discussion regarding VFW parking.
The VFW has requested that two spaces in the front of the VFW be combined into one ADA
compliant parking space. Council is in full agreement with this request.

B. Ordinance 1074 An ordinance authorizing the execution of the RMA minimum/maximum
contribution agreement.
This is the yearly insurance renewal. Rates did not go up. The city receives a discount for
sending in early.
MOTION by McKinley to approve ordinance 1074 an ordinance authorizing the execution
of the RMA minimum/maximum contribution agreement. Seconded by Friedrich. Voted
unanimously. Motion carried.

EXECUTIVE SESSION



OTHER ITEMS
City Manager report

City Manager McLaughlin informed council that crews are coming tomorrow to pave Green Street. They
will fill a hole on John St then move on to pave Oak Lane. Stark Construction is having issues getting
pipe so will start their work next week. McLaughlin also stated that she has met with Area Disposal
regarding issues. They have a new supervisor at the Clinton office and he has promised to do better.

Non-agenda items and other business

Mayor Testory wanted to remind residents about the Haunted Forest coming up. The dates are Oct 22-23
and Oct 29-30.

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION by McKinley to adjourn meeting. Seconded by Friedrich. Voted unanimously. Motion
carried.

Angie Wanserski, City Clerk



CITY OF FARMER CITY

Payment Approval Report - * * *
Report dates: 10/28/2020-10/31/2021

Page: 1
Oct 28, 2021 01:56PM

Vendor Name

Net Invoice Amount

100
WATTS COPY SYSTEMS INC
COOPER, BILLIE
USPS
WANSERSK!, ANGIE
WANSERSKI, ANGIE
WANSERSKI, ANGIE
Mc LAUGHLIN, SUE
City of Farmer City
SANDY SHAW MEMORIAL FUN
AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING
City of Farmer City
Evergreen FS Inc
CAMO'S LAWN AND LANDSCAP
FRONTIER
City of Farmer City
Evergreen FS Inc
CAMO'S LAWN AND LANDSCAP
CAMO'S LAWN AND LANDSCAP
City of Farmer City
LEHIGH HANSON INC.
MITCHELL'S TRUCKING
City of Farmer City

Total 100:

150
FAMILY TREE SERVICE

Total 150:

270

CAMO'S LAWN AND LANDSCAP

AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHIC

AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHIC
GAMETIME

Total 270:

510
City of Farmer City
AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHIC
AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHIC
Evergreen FS Inc

Total 510:

520
CAMO'S LAWN AND LANDSCAP
City of Farmer City
Progressive Chemical
Evergreen FS Inc
AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHIC
AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHIC

Total 520:

185.89
300.00
265.00
7222
34.31
258.72
232.96
284.32
100.00
273.20
91.11
903.35
1,160.00
32.41
178.91
350.28
400.00
1,280.00
445.35
250.43
300.51
372.31

7.771.28

5,800.00

5,800.00

400.00
55,000.00
34,030.00
23,724.15

113,164.15

938.83
25,000.00
14,271.88

165.91

40,376.62

120.00
6,684.68
487.71
165.91
25,000.00
14,271.87

46,730.17

COPIER

CLEANING SERVICE
POSTAGE

TRAVEL AND TRAINING
TRAVEL AND TRAINING
TRAVEL AND TRAINING
TRAVEL AND TRAINING
ADM

DONATION

PAPER

POLICE

POLICE FUEL
CEMETERY

STREET

STREET

STREET FUEL
WEEDMAN PARK
SOUTH PARK

PARK

CA8 SOUTH PARK

CA8 TRUCKING

POOL

800 N PLUM

PRAIRIE RIDGE

PRINCIPAL

INTEREST

PRAIRIE RIDGE PLAYGROUND

WATER
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST
WATER FUEL

LIFT STATION
SEWER

LAB SUPPLIES
SEWER FUEL
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST




CITY OF FARMER CITY

Payment Approval Report - * * *
Report dates: 10/28/2020-10/31/2021

Page: 2
Oct 28, 2021 01:56PM

Vendor Name

Net invoice Amount

530
BHMG ENGINEERS
BHMG ENGINEERS
ASSOCIATION OF ILLINOIS ELE
WELTY, JOE
City of Farmer City
Progressive Chemical
ANIXTER INC
Evergreen FS Inc
AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHIC
AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHIC

Total 530:

Grand Totals:

1,425.35
900.00
650.00
448.00
503.41
197.38
674.60
258.10

85,000.00
15,415.00

105,471.84

319,304.06

PROJECT 1011V

PROJECT 1011 E

SCHOOL - WELTY

LINEMAN TRAINING SCHOOL
ELECTRIC

RED MARKING PAINT
Supplies

ELEC FUEL

PRINCIPAL

INTEREST




CITY OF FARMER CITY Payment Approval Report - * * * Page: 1
Report dates: 10/28/2020-11/30/2021 Nov 10, 2021 11:28AM
Vendor Name Net Invoice Amount
100
MIDWEST MAILING AND SHIPPI 561.00 RENTAL AND FOLDER INSERTER
FRONTIER 96.89 ADM
FRONTIER 236.65 ADM
MUNICIPAL CLERKS OF ILLINO! 55.00 2022 MC! MEMBERSHIP
SIMPLIFIED COMPUTERS ) 46.35 VPN SETUP
T-MOBILE 28.60 ADMIT
CLINTON JOURNAL 1,418.25 TREAS REPORT
TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT 132.81 IWIN MEMBERSHIP SERVICES
SPRINT 229.57 POL TELEPHONE
FRONTIER 995.87 POLICE PHONE
ILLINOIS ASSOCIATION OF CHI 130.00 ANNUAL DUES
MACON COUNTY LAW ENFORC 3,566.63 ACADEMY FEES FOR HARRIS
CORNGELIO AG 5.48 POL- SUPPLIES
FAMILY TREE SERVICE 700.00 800 N PLUM
SPRINT 76.53 ST - TELEPHONE
FRONTIER 114.86 STREET
NORTHERN TOOL & EQUIPMEN 39.99 STR - SUPPLIES
Progressive Chemical 376.04 TWISTOIL
HEARTLAND AG INC 273.75 ST - SUPPLIES
CORNGELIO AG 81.11 STREET SUPPLIES
Progressive Chemical 278.38 Pedestrian crossing sign
FRONTIER 156.07 POOL
Menards 102.33 1INV 5335
Total 100: 9,702.16
110
LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP 6,875.00 ACCOUNTING ASSISTANCE
Total 110: 6,875.00
150
MAURER-STUTZ 4,493.75 MFT PROGRAM
Total 150: 4,493.75
270
MAURER-STUTZ 6,202.50 POOL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENT
MAURER-STUTZ 5,647.00 POOL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENT
Total 270: 11,849.50
430
AREA DISPOSAL 11,872.85 MONTHLY GARBAGE SERVICE
Total 490: 11,872.85
510
NAPA 104.30 VEHICLE maintenance
MIDWEST SERVICE CORPORAT 150.00 ANNUAL FEES
NICOR GAS 166.60 WATER GAS
CORNGELIO AG 37.95 WAT- SUPPLIES
CAP PROJ- WATER PLANT

WATER SOLUTIONS UNLIMITED 8,565.95

Total 510: 9,024.80




CITY OF FARMER CITY Payment Approval Report - * * * Page: 2
Report dates: 10/28/2020-11/30/2021 Nov 10, 2021 11,28AM
Vendor Name Net Invoice Amount
520
PDC Laboratories Inc. 788.18 PROFESSIONAL LAB SERVICES

EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOG! 8,508.68

Total 520: 9,296.86

530
HEPLERBROOM LLC 35.00
MID-WEST TRUCKERS ASSOCIH 7.50
MID-WEST TRUCKERS ASSOCI 75.00
MIDWEST SERVICE CORPORAT 225.00
QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC. 250.00
SPRINT 76.52
FRONTIER 164.57
AMACHER, TERRY 100.00
ASSOCIATION OF ILLINOIS ELE 500.00
NICOR GAS 3,627.51
Menards 149.77
Menards 99.36
Safety-Kieen Corporation 380.00
CORNGELIO AG 133.59
ANIXTER INC 842.50

Totat 530: 6,666.32

Grand Totals: 69,781.24

SEWER - ODOPHOS

POWER PLANT NOTICE
QUERY - WELTY
RANDOM DRUG TEST
ANNUAL FEES
POSTAGE

ELE - TELEPHONE

ELEC PHONE

BOOT REIMBURSEMENT
APPRENTICE CERT - WELTY
ELE-UTILITIES

INV 8219

INV 4045

ELEC - SUPPLIES

ELE SUPPLIES

Elec Supplies




ORDINANCE NO. 1076

AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING TITLE VII: TRAFFIC CODE, CHAPTER 78: PARKING SCHEDULES,
SCHEDULE III. HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACES
AND RELATED MATTERS
(VFW)

WHEREAS, Title VII: Traffic Code, Chapter 78: Parking Schedules, Schedule III.
Handicapped Parking Spaces of the Farmer City Code, as supplemented and amended, (the
“Farmer City Code”) and Section 11-208 of the Illinois Vehicle Code (625 ILCS 5/11-208), as
supplemented and amended (the “IVC”), provide that the Mayor and the City Council (the
“Corporate Authorities”) of the City of Farmer City, DeWitt County, Illinois (the “City”) may
designate parking spaces as reserved for persons with disabilities and therefore find and declare that
one (1) parking space in front of the VFW Post No. 6190, 106 S. Main Street should be designated
exclusively for vehicles bearing registration plates specified in Section 11-1301.1 of the IVC or a
special decal or device as defined in Section 11-1301.2, commonly known as handicapped plates or
tags.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF FARMER CITY, DEWITT COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows:

Section 1. Designated Handicapped Parking Space. That added to Subsection (A) of
Schedule III of Title VII: Traffic Code, Chapter 78 of the Farmer City Code shall be: First parking
spot in the southwest corner of the square in front of VFW Post No. 6190, 106 S. Main Street.

Section 2. Erection of Signs and Striping. That the City Manager shall cause appropriate
signs to be erected along such street and appropriate striping as specified in Section 1 of this
Ordinance as soon as reasonably practicable. The parking restrictions imposed and so designated
by this Ordinance shall become effective when such applicable signs are so erected.

Section 3. Penalty. That all vehicles and persons violating this Ordinance shall be guilty of
an ordinance violation and subject to a minimum fine of $50 and maximum fine of $500, as allowed
by law and ordinance.

Section 4. Effective Date. The provisions of this Ordinance shall become effective
immediately following its passage, approval and publication as required by law.

Section 5. Conflict. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances which are in conflict with
the provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded.

Section 6. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to cause this
Ordinance to be published in pamphlet form immediately after passage.




Section 7. Validity. If any section, subdivision or sentence of this ordinance is for any
reason held invalid or to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portion of this ordinance.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FARMER CITY,
COUNTY OF DEWITT, ILLINOIS THIS 15" DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2021.

AYES: ~ NAYES:  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:
ATTESTED:
Scott Testory, Mayor Angie Wanserski, City Clerk



Ordinance No. 1077

An Ordinance Establishing Regulations Governing the Registration,
Maintenance, Security and Monitoring of Vacant Properties by their Owners

Whereas, vacant structures and properties, if left unattended, are likely
to fall into disrepair, create public nuisance, drain City resources, contribute
to the decrease in value of surrounding properties, precipitate disinvestment
by neighboring owners, provide locations for illegal activities and undermine
the aesthetic character of the City; and

Whereas, structures and properties that remain vacant over an extended
period of time are detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare and
can pose an extraordinary danger to police officers, firefighters and City
officials when entering the premises in response to emergencies or in the
normal course of their duties; and

Whereas; vacant structures and properties often are owned or controlled
by individuals or other entities, including court appointed receivers who
should be responsible for property preservation; and

Whereas; the registration of these vacant structures and properties
and the implementation of maintenance and monitoring plans will help
encourage property owners and those responsible to properly maintain the
structure and property, therefore preventing these properties from becoming
a burden to the residents and tax payers of the City and provide an impetus
for returning these properties to their intended use and to the tax rolls; and

Whereas; the City of Farmer City is empowered to enact legislation to
define, prohibit and abate public nuisances; and

Whereas; the City Council of the City has determined that the
abatement of nuisances caused by vacant structures and properties, the
repair and rehabilitation of vacant structures and properties with a
subsequent occupancy is in the best interests of the citizens of the City, and
further, the City Council desires to enact an ordinance providing for the
declaration of vacant structures and properties, whether boarded up or not,
as public nuisances and providing for their abatement is a means of
maintaining sanitation, health and safety standards, preventing illegal
activities, avoiding fire and eliminating or minimizing the detrimental effect
such properties have on the economic wellbeing of the City.

NOW, Therefore, be it ordained by the Mayor and City Council of the City
of Farmer City as follows, to-wit:



Section 1. Chapter 97, entitled “Registration and Maintenance of
Vacant Structures and Properties”, of the Farmer City Code, is hereby added
as set forth below:

CHAPTER 97: REGISTRATION AND MAINTENANCE OF VACANT
STRUCTURES AND PROPERTIES

§97.01 -- DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this chapter, the following words and phrases shall have
the meanings set forth below:

Owner: Every person, entity or service company who alone or jointly or separately
with others:

(a) have the legal or equitable title to any dwelling, dwelling unit, building, land
or structure; or

(b) has care, charge or control of any dwelling, dwelling unit, building, land or
structure in any capacity, including but not limited to executor, administrator,
trustee or guardian of the estate of the holder of legal title; or

(c) is a mortgagee under the terms of a mortgage, where the mortgagor is no
longer taking responsibility for the property, and where the mortgage in question
contains a provision authorizing the mortgagee to act to secure or repair the
property; or

(d) is @ mortgagee in possession of any such property; or
(e) is a mortgagee that has instituted proceedings against the mortgagor; or
¢ is a trustee or other person appointed by the courts invested with possession

or control of any such property.

Responsible Party: Includes owners, tenants, occupiers, property managers,
lessees or agents

Statement of Intent: A form completed by the owner, as defined, of a vacant
structure or responsible party which contains specific information regarding the
structure and the owners’ plans for rehabilitation, maintenance, demolition and/or
removal.

Structure: Any physical object or edifice that is built or installed and is located on
and affixed to the land. The term “structure” shall include any part of a structure.

Substantial Rehabilitation: Any rehabilitation, the cost of which exceeds fifty
percent (50%) of the market value of the existing structure.

Vacant: Vacant means a structure that is:



(a) lacking the habitual presence of human beings, who have a legal right to be
on the premises for ninety (90) consecutive days; or;

(b) a structure at which substantially all lawful business or construction activity or
residential occupancy has ceased, or;

(©) which is substantially devoid of contents, or;

(d) a multi-family residential property when ninety percent (90%) of the dwelling
units are unoccupied.

For the purposes of this chapter, exceptions to the definition of vacant shall be made
for properties that are actively listed for sale and for those properties which are
under active, ongoing rehabilitation or reconstruction and have a building permit
issued by the appropriate jurisdiction, if required.

Vacant Structure Maintenance Standards: The maintenance standards to which the
vacant structures are subject under this chapter, are set forth in all of the applicable
ordinances and regulations of the City and County, as amended from time to time.

Vacant Structure Registration Certificate: Document issued by the City for
structures meeting the definition of “vacant structure.”

§97.02 -- ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITY

The City Police Department is authorized to administer and enforce the
provisions of this chapter, including, but not limited to, maintaining lists
setting forth the status of vacant structures. The City Police Department
may delegate his/her powers and duties to an appropriate designee or
inspector.

§97.03 -- RESPONSIBLE PARTIES; LIENS

Every responsible party with respect to any vacant property shall be jointly
and severally liable with every other responsible party for the obligations set
forth in this chapter. In reference to an owner in this chapter shall include all
responsible parties. All fees, costs and charges assessed and incurred by the
City shall constitute a lien on the real estate upon which such vacant
structure is situated.

§97.04 -- OBLIGATIONS OF OWNERS OF VACANT STRUCTURES

(a)  Within thirty (30) days of a structure becoming vacant, as defined
herein, the owner of the structure shall apply for a Vacant Structure
Registration Certificate and pay a fee of $100. If the structure is still vacant
at the time of expiration of the original Vacant Structure Registration
Certificate (six (6) months as defined below), the owner shall immediately



apply to renew the certificate. At the City’s sole discretion, renewal may be
had upon demonstrated need for a maximum of two 6-month periods, for an
aggregate maximum of eighteen (18) months total vacancy registration.
Renewed permits shall be subject to all conditions and obligations imposed
by this chapter on the initial certificate, including the payment of a $50 fee at
each renewal. It shall be the responsibility of the registered owner to file an
amended registration within ten (10) days of any changes contained in the
initial application, including occupancy or transfer. During the period of
registration, the owner shall provide access to the City to conduct inspections
of the structure, both interior and exterior if deemed necessary by the City,
and, following reasonable notice, to determine compliance with this
ordinance and any other relevant codes and ordinances of the City.

(b)  The owner of a vacant structure shall comply with all regulations of the
City. To this end, the owner shall apply for all applicable building, fire
prevention and zoning permits necessary to bring the structure into
compliance within ten (10) days of obtaining a Vacant Structure Registration
Certificate.

(c)  The owner of a vacant structure shall, within ten (10) days of receipt
of the Vacant Structure Registration Certificate, complete the removal of all:

(1) combustible materials from the structure in compliance with the
applicable fire prevention regulations;

(2) waste, rubbish or debris from the interior of the structure; and

(3) waste, rubbish, debris or excess vegetation including grass in
excess of eight (8) inches from the yards surrounding the vacant structure in
accordance with the City’s Ordinances.

(d) The owner of a vacant structure shall immediately lock, barricade or secure all
doors, windows and other openings in the structure to prevent entry by unauthorized
persons, in accordance with the vacant structure maintenance standards of this
chapter. The owner shall, as needed, provide additional security in the event of
increased danger to human life or the public welfare, as determined by the City.

(e) The obligations of the owner of a vacant structure are continuing obligations
which are effective throughout the time that the structure is vacant as that term is
defined in this chapter.

§97.05 -- VACANT STRUCTURE REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE

(a) Application by the owner of a vacant structure for a vacant structure
certificate shall be made on a form provided by the City. The application
shall include a “statement of intent” which will set forth information as to:

1) the expected period of vacancy (including the date of initial
vacancy);



2) the plan for regular maintenance during the vacancy to comply
with the vacant structure maintenance standards of this subsection and all of
the applicable property maintenance, building and nuisance codes of the
City;

3) a plan and time line for the lawful occupancy, rehabilitation,
removal or demolition of the structure;

4) measures to be taken to ensure that the structure will be kept
weather tight and secure from trespassers and that it will be safe for entry
by police officers, firefighters and code or building inspectors in time of
exigent circumstances or emergency as well as at times of reasonable
inspection as provided in Section 97.06 below;

5) measures to be taken to assure that the premises remain free
from nuisance conditions and in good order in conformance with the vacant
structure maintenance standards; and

6) list all persons authorized to be present in the structure and
provide notices of trespass to the police authorizing the arrest for trespass of
individuals not on the list (The owner shall update the authorized person list
as needed).

(b)  No Vacant Structure Registration Certificate shall be effective for more
than six months from the date of issuance. Only two six-month renewals at
the City’s sole discretion, upon demonstrated need, may be allowed as
above.

§97.06 -- VACANT STRUCTURE MAINTENANCE STANDARDS

A vacant structure shall be subject to the maintenance standards as set forth
in the applicable provisions of City Ordinances.

§97.07 -- VACANT STRUCTURE REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE FEE

The Vacant Structure Registration Certificate application fee of $50 shall also
be charged upon application for certificate renewal. The fee shall be paid at
the time of application or renewal.

§97.08 -- REQUIRED LIABILITY INSURANCE

It shall be the responsibility of the owner or owner’s agent to maintain
liability insurance on all vacant and registered properties under their control.
Proof of evidence of such insurance shall be filed with the City. Minimum
insurance amounts shall be determined by the City on an individual basis.

§57.09 -- AFFIXING CONTACT/EMERGENCY INFORMATION TO



VACANT PROPERTY

The owner or owner’ agent shall affix to the vacant structure a copy of the
Vacant Structure Registration Certificate in a front window so that it is able
to be read by law enforcement or City personnel as needed.

§97.10 -- ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES

(a)  Any person found to be in violation of any provision of this chapter
shall be subject to a minimum fine of $150, not to exceed $750. Each day
that said violation continues shall be considered a new and separate
violation. Prosecution under this section is a remedy cumulative to any and
all other remedies at law and equity, including but not limited to the City’s
remedies under 65 ILCS 5/11-13-15.

(b)  All fees, costs or charges assessed or incurred by the City pursuant to
this chapter shall be a lien upon the real property. The lien shall be superior
to all subsequent liens and encumbrances. The City Attorney shall file a
notice of lien, within two (2) years after such cost and expense is incurred, in
the office of the DeWitt County Recorder of Deeds. The lien may be enforced
by proceeding to foreclose, as in case of mortgages or mechanic’s liens.

(c) At the expiration of eighteen (18) months from the original issuance of
the Vacant Structure Registration Certificate, the structure must be
reoccupied, removed or demolished. Any structure which is vacant beyond
the eighteen (18) month maximum registration period shall be considered
abandoned and a public nuisance and the City may pursue whatever legal
action is afforded to it by law for the removal and/or abatement of public
nuisance.

§97.11 -- REQUEST FOR WAIVER

(a) Any owner of a vacant residential property of one to three units, who
is a natural person with insufficient income or resources to fulfill all of the
obligations imposed herein, may petition the City for a waiver of the annual
fee, a reduction of the minimum amount of liability insurance, and/or a
waiver of some or all of the property rehabilitation requirements (hereinafter
“financial requirements”) under this ordinance for a period of time not to
exceed twelve (12) months. Application for a waiver of financial
requirements shall be in writing on forms provided by the City. The decision
of the City Manager, to be made within fourteen (14) days of receiving the
petition, shall be made in writing and shall forthwith be mailed or delivered
to the petitioner. An appeal of the decision may be made to the City Council,
in writing, within fourteen (14) days of the mailing or delivery of the
decision. Individuals who are granted a twelve (12) month waiver under this
Section are still obligated to keep the registered property secure and safe,
and the exterior property areas free from debris, with grass regularly
mowed.



(b)  Arequest for a waiver from the provisions of Section 97.04 for good
cause as set forth in the waiver request, shall be made by the owner to the
City Manager, in writing. The waiver request shall be reviewed by the City
Manager within thirty (30) days of receipt and the decision of the City
Manager shall be in writing and mailed or delivered to the petitioner.



Section 3. Effective Date. The provisions of this Ordinance shall
become effective immediately following its passage, approval and publication
as required by law.

Section 4. Conflict. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances which
are in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such
conflict, hereby superseded.

Section 5. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and
directed to cause this Ordinance to be published in pamphlet form immediately
after passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FARMER CITY,
COUNTY OF DEWITT, ILLINOIS THIS 15th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2021.

AYES: NAYES: ABSTAIN: ____ ABSENT:

ATTESTED:

Scott Testory, Mayor Angie Wanserski, City Clerk



CITY OF FARMER CITY

105 S MAIN ST

FARMER CITY, IL 61842

(309) 928-3412

VACANT STRUCTURE REGISTRATION FORM

Dear Property Owner:

Pursuant to Ordinance No. 1077 of the City of Farmer City, any structure which has
been determined to be “Vacant” as defined in the Ordinance, must be registered with
the City of Farmer City, 105 S Main St, Farmer City, IL 61842.

Please complete this form, parts 1 and 2, submit $100 registration fee with
application and Certificate of Liability Insurance. Application must be submitted
within 30 days of knowledge that the property is vacant. Any and all changes to the
information provided on this form shall be reported to the City of Farmer City within

10 days or faxed to 309-928-2228.

Vacant Structure Address:

Type of Structure:

Residential 1-2 units

Residential 3-11 units
Owner Information:

Name

Company Name

Address

City ST Zip

Daytime Number

Emergency Number

Email

Other

Name

Company Name

Address

City ST Zip

Commercial structures

Agent:

Name

Company Name

Address

City ST__ Zip

Daytime Number

Emergency Number

Email

Vacant Building Liability Ins Co

Name

Company Name

Address

City ST__ Zip



Daytime Number Daytime Number

Emergency Number Amount of Coverage $

Email

By affixing my signature to this form, I understand that the City will not issue a
Registration Certificate, required by the City Ordinance, until the required
registration process is complete. I accept service by “Notice of Posting” on the
property.

Signature Date

Printed Name



STATEMENT OF INTENT

1. What is the expected period of vacancy (including the date of initial vacancy)?

2. What is the plan for regular maintenance during the vacancy to comply with
all of the applicable property maintenance and zoning codes of the County
and City?

3. What is the plan and time line for the lawful occupancy, rehabilitation,

removal or demolition of the structure?

4. What are the measures to be taken to ensure that the structure will be kept
weather tight and secure from trespassers and that it will be safe for entry by
police officers, firefighters and code or building inspectors in time of exigent
circumstances or emergency as well as at times of reasonable inspection as
provided in the Ordinance?

5. What measures will be taken to assure that the premises remain free from
nuisance conditions and in good order in conformance with the vacant
structure maintenance standards?

6. List all persons authorized to be present in the structure and, if deemed
necessary, provide notices of trespass to the police authorizing the arrest for
trespass of individuals not on the list. (The owner shall update the authorized
person list as needed).

No Vacant Structure Registration Certificate shall be effective for more than



six months from the date of issuance. Only two six-month renewals
at the City’s sole discretion, upon demonstrated need, may be allowed
as above. A renewal fee of $ will be charged.

Signature Date

Printed Name



RESOLUTION 2021-65

RESOLUTION AMENDING 2022 MEETING DATES AS REQUIRED BY LAW

WHEREAS, the City of Farmer City is required by Illinois law to prepare a schedule of all
regular meetings for 2022, and

WHEREAS, the City of Farmer city is required by Illinois law to post the schedule listing the
time and place of all regular meetings, and

WHEREAS, the City of Farmer city is required by Illinois law to supply the schedule of all
regular meetings to the news media requesting such notice,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FARMER
CITY, DEWITT COUNTY, ILLINOIS:

FIRST: that the City Council of the City of Farmer City approves the 2022 meeting dates as
listed on the attached schedule.

SECOND; that the City Clerk be, and she hereby is directed to post the schedule at the entrance
of city hall and email to any news media requesting such notice.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FARMER CITY,
COUNTY OF DEWITT, ILLINOIS THIS 15% DAY OF NOVEMBER 2021.

AYES: NAYS: ABSTAIN: ABSENT:

Scott Testory, Mayor Angie Wanserski, City Clerk



ATTACHMENT TO RESOLUTION 2021-65
CITY OF FARMER CITY, ILLINOIS 2022 MEETING AND HOLIDAY SCHEDULE

. The following dates are scheduled as regular 2022 meeting dates of the Farmer City,
City Council (regular time 6 p.m.) The 2nd meeting of the month may be
cancelled if no pressing matters exist — please check city website for
confirmation.

January 3 July 5 and July 18
February 7 August 1 and 15
March 7 and 21 September 6 and 19
April 4 and 18 October 3 and 17
May 2 and 16 November 7 and 21
June 6 and 20 December 5

. The Farmer City, City Hall will be closed in observance of the following holidays
New Year’s Holiday (2022) December 31, 2021
Martin Luther King Jr Day January 17, 2022
President’s Day February 21, 2022
Good Friday April 15,2022
Memorial Day May 30, 2022
Independence Day July 4, 2022
Labor Day September 5, 2022
Columbus Day October 10, 2022
Veterans Day November 11, 2022
Thanksgiving November 24 and 25, 2022
Christmas Eve December 23, 2022
Christmas Day December 26, 2022

The Farmer City Council meetings will be held at City Hall,

105 S. Main Street, Farmer City in the council chambers.

Anyone planning to attend the meeting who has need of special assistance under the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) is asked to contact the City Clerk's office at (309)
928-2842, 48 hours before the meeting. Staff will be pleased to make the necessary
arrangements.

ATTACHMENT TO RESOLUTION 2021-65



CITY OF FARMER CITY, ILLINOIS 2022 MEETING AND HOLIDAY SCHEDULE

1. The following dates are scheduled as regular 2022 meeting dates of the Farmer City, City
Council (regular time 6 p.m.) The 2nd meeting of the month may be cancelled if no
pressing matters exist — please check city website for confirmation.

January 3 July 5 and July 18
February 7 August 1 and 15
March 7 and 21 September 6 and 19
April 4 and 18 October 3 and 17
May 2 and 16 November 7 and 21
June 6 and 21 December 5

2. The Farmer City, City Hall will be closed in observance of the following holidays:

New Year’s Holiday (2022) December 31, 2021
Martin Luther King Jr Day January 17, 2022
President’s Day February 21, 2022
Good Friday April 15,2022
Memorial Day May 30, 2022
Juneteenth June 20, 2022
Independence Day July 4, 2022

Labor Day September 5, 2022
Columbus Day October 10, 2022
Veterans Day Novemﬁer 11,2022
Thanksgiving November 24 and 25, 2022
Christmas Eve December 23, 2022
Christmas Day December 26, 2022

The Farmer City council meetings will be held at city hall, 105 S Main St, Farmer City, IL in the
council chambers. Anyone planning to attend the meeting who has need of special assistance under
the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) is asked to contact the City Clerk's office at (309) 928-
2842, 48 hours before the meeting. Staff will be pleased to make the necessary arrangements.



